
OFICINA DEL COMISIONADO DE ASUNTOS MUNICIPALES
ÁRel oe AsEsoRAñnENTo, REGLAMENTacIón E INTERvENcIó¡¡ nscl-

Ánet oe ARcHtvo DrGrrAL

MUNICIP¡O DE AGUAS BUENAS
AUDITOR/,A2014-2A15

30 DE JUNIO DE 2OI5



tie-'¡.,';'.";¡ (-L-j.'r)ri 
- -

z i-' ;' ;' "' "' 
t, <i*1 ! ¡

16 lp;? :i;: 
.,, t<. 46

COMÍUIOTIWEALTH OF ruERIO RICO

MU¡|¡OPAUTY OF AGUAS BUEilAS, ruERrO R|GO

SilGLE AuDr REPomilc PAcrrGE

Fon THE YEAn Er.rD rurc 30, 2O1!i

L

I



COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

St GtE AuDrREPoRn c PaCKAGE

FOR THE YEAR Ef{DED JUNE 30, 2015

TABTE OF CONTENTS

FINANCIAL SECTION

lndependent Audito/s Report
Management's D¡scuss¡on and Analys¡s

Bas¡c Financ¡al statements:
Governmental -w¡de fi nanc¡al statement:

Statement of Net Posit¡on

Statement of Act¡vities
Fund Financial Statements:

Governmental Funds F¡nanc¡al statements:
Balance Sheet
Reconc¡l¡at¡on of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to Statement of Net Pos¡tion

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Reconc¡l¡at¡on of the statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes ¡n Fund Balance

to the Statement of Act¡vities
Proprietary F¡nancial Statements:

Statement of Financial Pos¡t¡on

Statement of Activit¡es
Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the F¡nanc¡al Statements

REOUIRED SUPPTEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of Budgetary Compar¡son

Notes to Schedule of Budgetary Compar¡son

SUPPTEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

REPORTS REQUIRED UNDER OMB CIRCUTAR A - 133

lndependent Auditor's Report on lnternal Control Over Financial Reporting and on

Compl¡ance and other Matters based on an Audit of F¡nanc¡al Statements Performed in

Accordance w¡th Government Aud¡t¡ng standards

lndependent Audito/s Report on Compliance with Requ¡rements Appl¡cable to Each Major

Program and on lnternal Control Over Compl¡ance in Accordance w¡th OMB C¡rcular A-133

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

sect¡on l. - 5ummary of Aud¡to/s Results

Sect¡on ll. - Financial Statements Findings

Sect¡on lll. - FederalAwards Findings And Quest¡oned Costs

PAGE

7-4
5-13

L4
15-15

t7

18
19

70

2L
22

23-24
24-44

45

46
47-44

49-57
52

53-54

55-58

59
60
61
62



L

L

L

L

L

L

L

L

L

L

L

L

L

L

L

L

L

L

L

GOUMOTWEATIH OF ruERTO RTOO

MUÍ{|oPAUTY OFAGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RrcO

HI|ATIOATÍAICMErÍS

FOR THE YTAR EÍIDCD'UÍ{E 3I', 2OIS



CARLOS R. DIAZ, CPA, PSC
pO 8ox ¿oa, 7 SALAS fO^RES 5f, AGUAs BltENAS, PUERTo R|CO m703 TÉL: 7a7 732 ao20 FA¡ 737.732.0645 €MA L: .d€z@GnosrdEzcp..coñ

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and

Municipal legislat¡ve Eody
Mun¡cipality of Aguas Buenas

Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico

Report on the Financ¡al Statements

We have audited the accompany¡ng financial statements of the governmental activ¡ties, each major

fund, and the aggregate rema¡ning funds information of Municipality of Aguas Buenas, as of and for the
year ended June 30,2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, wh¡ch collectively comprise

the Municipalw of Aguas Buenas, Puerto R¡co bas¡c financ¡al statements as l¡sted in the table of
contents. we d¡d not audit the financial statement of the Esp¡r¡tu santo Project, which represents 100%

of total assets, net pos¡t¡on and revenue of the business type activities.

Management's Responsibili§ for the F¡nancial Statéments

Management is responsible for the preparat¡on and fair presentat¡on of these financial statements in

accordance w¡th accounting principles generally accepted ¡n the United States of America; this ¡ncludes

the des¡gn, ¡mplementation, and maintenance of ¡nternal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentat¡on of f¡nancial statements that are free from mater¡al m¡sstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

Audito/s Responsibili§

our responsibility is to express opin¡ons on these financial statements based on our audit. we did not

aud¡t the financ¡al statements of the business type act¡vities. Those statements were audited by other

auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opin¡on, ¡nsofar as it relates to the amounts

included for Esp¡ritu Santo Proiect, ¡s based solely on the report of the other aud¡tors. We conducted

our audit in accordance w¡th aud¡ting standards generally accepted ¡n the United States of America and

the standards applicable to financial aud¡ts conta¡ned in Government Auditing Stondords, ¡ssued by the

Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards requ¡re that we plan and perform the audit

to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material

m¡sstatement.

MEMBER:
Ame¡icán lnstitute qú Certmed Public Accountants
Puerto R¡co Society of Certified Publ¡c A.countantscPA :firüHffi!",.,



Audito/s Respons¡bil¡ty (continuedl

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain aud¡t evidence about the amounts and disclosures in

the financ¡al statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of mater¡al misstatement of the f¡nanc¡al statements, whether due to fraud or
error. ln making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparat¡on and fair presentat¡on of the financial statements in order to des¡gn audit procedures that
are appropr¡ate ¡n the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an op¡n¡on on the
effectiveness of the ent¡q/s ¡nternal control. Accord¡ngly, we express no such op¡n¡on. An audit also

includes evaluating the appropriateness of account¡ng policies used and the reasonableness of
signif¡cant account¡ng estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the f¡nancial statements.

We believe that the aud¡t ev¡dence we have obta¡ned ¡s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Summarv of ooinions:

Governmental activ¡ties
Bus¡ness type activities
Each mayor funds
Aggregate remaining funds

TYoe of opinion:

Qualified
Unqualified
Unqualified
Unqualified

Basis for Qualified Opinion on Governmental Activ¡ties

Management has not recorded the proport¡onal share in the net pension plan liability of the employee
ret¡rement system (ERS) and related d¡sclosures. Accounting pr¡nc¡ples generally accepted in the Un¡ted

States of America requ¡re that the liab¡l¡ty represent¡ng the Mun¡c¡pal¡ty proportion share ¡n the ERS

should be presented ¡n the governmental-wide financial statements. ln addition, other informat¡on of
the ERS should be disclosed. The amount by which this departure would affect the liabilities of fund
balance and expenses of the governmental-w¡de financial statements has not been determined.

Qualified opinion

tn our opin¡on, except for the effects of the matter described in the "Bas¡s for Qualified Opinion on

Governmental Activ¡ties" paragraph, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all

material respects, the financ¡al position of the governmental activit¡es of the Municipality of Aguas

Buenas, Puerto R¡co, as of June 30, 2015, and the changes in financial pos¡t¡on thereof for the year then
ended in accordance w¡th accounting princ¡ples generally accepted ¡n the Un¡ted States of Amer¡ca.

Unmodified opinions

ln our op¡nion, based on our audit and the report of other aud¡tor, the financ¡al statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial pos¡tion of the business-type

activit¡es, each major fund, and the aggregate rema¡n¡ng fund informat¡on of the Munic¡pality of Aguas

Buenas, Puerto Rico as of June 30, 2015, and the respect¡ve changes in financial position, and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting pr¡nc¡ples

generally accepted in the United States of Amer¡ca.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOPS REPORT (CONTINUED):

Other Matters

Re q ui re d S u p ple m e nto ry I nf o rm otio n

Accounting principles generally accepted ¡n the United States of America require that the management's

discussion and analysls and budgetary comparison information on pages 5 to 13 and 46 to 48 be

presented to supplement the basic financ¡al statements. Such informat¡on, although not a part of the

basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers

it to be an essential part of financial report¡ng for placing the basic financial statements in an

appropr¡ate operational, economic, or h¡stor¡cal context. We have applied certa¡n limited procedures to
the required supplementary information In accordance w¡th auditing standards generally accepted in

the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the informat¡on and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses

to our inquiries, the basic financ¡al statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of
the bas¡c f¡nanc¡al statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the

¡nformation because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an

oplnion or provide any assurance.

Management has omitted information related to the Municipal¡ty proportionate share of net pension

plan liability of the employer retirement systems information that account¡ng principles generally

accepted ¡n the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the bas¡c financial

statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the bas¡c financial statements, ¡s required

by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers ¡t to be an essential part of the

financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or

historical context. Our opin¡on on the bas¡c f¡nanc¡al statements is not affected by this miss¡ng

¡nformation.

Other lnformotion

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively compr¡se the Munic¡pal¡ty of Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico's basic financial statements. The

accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of addit¡onal

analysis as required by U.S. Off¡ce of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of Stotes, Local

Governments, ond Non-Profit Organizot¡ons, and ¡s not a required part of the basic financial statements.

Such informat¡on is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relate d¡rectly to the

underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The

informat¡on has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied ¡n the aud¡t of the basic financial

statements and certain addltional procedures, including comparing and reconcil¡ng such informat¡on

directly to the underlying accountinB and other records used to prepare the basic f¡nancial statements

or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other addit¡onal procedures in accordance with
aud¡t¡ng standards generally accepted ¡n the United States of Amer¡ca. ln our op¡n¡on, the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial

statements as a whole.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR,S REPORT (CONTINUED}:

other Reporting Required by Govetnment Aud¡üng stando/,d,s

ln accordance witl't Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 15,

2015, on our consideration of the Mun¡c¡pal¡ty of Aguas Buenas ¡nternal control over financ¡al report¡ng

and on our tests of its compliance w¡th certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant

agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
¡nternal control over financial report¡ng and compliance and the results of that test¡ng, and not to
provide an op¡nion on ¡nternal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report ¡s an

¡ntegral part of an aud¡t performed in accordance with Government Auditing Stondords in considering

Municipality of Aguas Buenas internal control over financ¡al report¡ng and compliance'

@
Carloh. Díaz, CPA, PSC

License No. 275

Expire December 1, 2018
March 15, 2015
Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico

The stamp No. 8199126 of the Puerto R¡co

Soc¡ety of Certified Public Accountants was

affixed to the orig¡nal of th¡s report.



COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

SfATEMENT OF NEr PosmoN

As OF JUNE 30, 2015

This discussion and analysis of the Munic¡pal¡ty of Aguas Buenas (Munlcipality) financial pelormance
provides an overview of the Municipality's financial act¡vities for the fiscal year ended on June 30, 2015.

The Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) should be read in conjunction w¡th the accompanying

basic financial statements and the accompany¡ng notes to those financial statements. The d¡scuss¡on

and analysis includes comparat¡ve data for prior year as this ¡nformation is available for the fiscal year

ended on June 30, 2014. Th¡s MD&A is prepared in order to comply with such pronouncement and,

among other purposes, to prov¡de the financial statements users w¡th the following major information:

a broader basis in focusing ¡mportant issues;

acknowledgement of an overview of the Municipality's financial activities;

provide for an evaluat¡on of its financial condition as of the end of the ¡ndicated fiscal year,

compared with prior year results;

¡dentif¡cation of uses of funds in the financing of the Municipality's variety of act¡vities and;

assess management's ability to handle budgetary functions.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The following comments about the financial condition and results of operations as reflected in the

f¡nanc¡al statements prepared for fiscal year 2015 deserve special ment¡on:

1. Total assets of the Munic¡pality amounted to 536,o?a,773 which represents an increase of 3%

compared to prior fiscal year.

2. At the end of fiscal year 2015, total liab¡l¡ties amounted to 511,057,822. Out of sa¡d amount,

59,055,078 corresponded to lon8-term liabilities of which 57,429,0o0 represented the

outstand¡ng balance of bonds and notes ¡ssued. The Municipality continued to meet all debt

service requirements, most of which was paid from self generated revenues.

3. Total net assets of the Mun¡cipality amounted to 524,475,752 which represents an increase of
7% if compared to prior fiscal year.

4. Total revenues available for the financing of act¡vit¡es as reflected ¡n the Statement of Activ¡t¡es

amounted to 515,557,639 derived from the follow¡ng sources: 5453,081 charges for services;

52,079,698 from operating grants and contribut¡ons; 52,161,318 from cap¡tal grants and

contr¡butions obtained from other sources, and S10,953,541 from general revenues.

5. Total expenses ¡ncurred to afford the cost of all functions and programs as reflected in the

Statement of Act¡v¡ties amounted to S14,033,139.

2.

3.

4.

5.



COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

STATEME T OT NEf POSMON

As OF JUNE 30, 2015

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (CONTINUED)

As reflected in the Statement of Act¡v¡ties, the current fiscal year operat¡ons contributed to an

¡ncrease ¡n the Net Assets figure by 51,624,500.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Municipaliq/s Governmental Funds reported
combined ending fund balances of S4,L73,177.

As the end of the current fiscal year, the Munic¡pality's general fund deficit amounted to

5577,331 compared to the defic¡t of $3aa,569 in the pr¡or fiscal year.

9. The actual General Fund budgetary activities resulted in a favorable balance of 5593,504.

FUNDAMENTALS OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PRESENTATION

The approach used in the presentation of the f¡nancial statements of the Munic¡pal¡ty ¡s based on a

government-wide view of such statements as well as a presentat¡on of individual funds behavior during

fiscal year 2015. The combination of these two perspect¡ves provide the user the opportunity to
address significant quest¡ons concerning the content of said f¡nancial statements, and prov¡de the basis

for a comparable analysis of future years performance. The comparative analysis is a meaningful and

useful management tool for municipal management ¡n the decision making process.

Under the aforementioned approach, assets and liab¡l¡ties are recognized using the accrual basis of
accounting which is sim¡lar to the method used by most private enterpr¡ses. This means that current
yea/s revenues and expenses are accounted for regardless of when cash is received or paid.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS COMPONENTS

The basic f¡nanc¡al statements cons¡st of the government wide financial statements, the major funds

financial statements and the notes to the flnancial statements which provide details, disclosure and

descript¡on of the most ¡mportant ¡tems included in said statements.

The Statement of Net Assets reflects information of the Municipality as a whole of a consolidated basis

and provides relevant information about its financial strength as reflected at the end of the fiscal year.

Such flnancial level is measured as the d¡fference between total assets and l¡abil¡ties, w¡th the difference
between both items reported as net assets. lt ¡s important to note that although mun¡cipalities as

governmental publ¡c ent¡t¡es were not created to operate under a prof¡t mot¡ve framework, the return

on assets performance plays an important role in their financial operat¡ons. The higher the increments

ach¡eved in net revenues, the higher the capac¡ty to increase the net assets figure e¡ther thru addit¡onal

borrowings or thru internally generated funds. This in turn will benefit the welfare of the Munic¡pal¡ty of
Aguas Buenas const¡tuents.

7.



COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

STATEMENT OF NEr PostnoN
As Or JUNE 30, 2015

FI NANCIAL STATEMENTS COMPONENTS (CONTI N UED)

The Statement of Activ¡t¡es is focused on both gross and net cost of the various activit¡es of the

Munic¡pal¡ty. lt presents information which shows the changes ¡n the Mun¡c¡pality's net assets at the

most recent fiscal year. Based on the use of the accrual bas¡s of accounting, changes are reported as

soon as the underlying event occurs, regardless of the t¡m¡ng of the related cash flows. Under said

approach, revenues and expenses are reported ¡n the Statement of Activit¡es based on the theory that ¡t

w¡ll result in cash flows to be realized in future periods.

A brief review of the Statements of Activities of the Municipality at June 30, 2015, shows total expenses

incurred to afford the cost of all functions and programs amounted to 514,033,139. Upon exam¡n¡ng the

sources of revenues for the financing of said programs, the Statement reflects that 54,704,097 was

derived from the following sources: 5463,081 charges for services; 52,079,698 from operating grants

and contribut¡ons; and 52,161,318 from capital grants and contributions obta¡ned from other sources.

General revenues for the year amounted to 510,953,541. When such figure is added to the 54,704,097
previously mentioned, total revenues available for the financing of act¡v¡ties amounted to S15,657,638.

There was an excess of revenues over expenses in the amount of 51,624,500 which contributed w¡th an

increase to the figure of net assets attained at the end of the fiscal year.

The Fund Financial Statement ¡s another important component of the Mun¡c¡pal¡ty's financ¡al

statements. A fund is a group¡ng of related accounts that are used to ma¡nta¡n accountability and

controls over economic resources of the Mun¡c¡pality that have been segregated for specific act¡vit¡es.

The Municipal fund type of accounting ¡s used to demonstrate compliance with related legal

requirements. lnformation offered thru this Statement is limited to the Municipal¡ty most significant

funds and is particularly related to the local government only, ¡nstead of the government as a whole.

Government funds are used to account for essentially the same functions as those reported as

governmental activ¡ties. The funds are reported us¡ng an accounting method known as modified accrual

account¡ng which measures cash and all other financ¡al assets that can be readily converted ¡nto cash.

The fund statement approach gives the user a short term v¡ew of the Mun¡cipal¡ty's government

operations and the bas¡c services it prov¡des. S¡nce the focus of government funds is narrower than that
of the f¡nanc¡al statements as a whole, it also helps the user with comparable Information presented ¡n

the governmental activit¡es report. By do¡ng so, readers of the basic f¡nanc¡al statements may

understand better the long-term effect of the Municipality's short-term f¡nancial decisions.

FINANCIAL ANATYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY AS A WHOLE

Net Position

The Statement of Net Pos¡t¡on serves as an ¡nd¡cator of the Municipality's f¡nancial pos¡tion at the end of
the fiscal year. ln the case of the Municipal¡ty of Aguas Buenas, primary government assets exceeded

total liab¡l¡t¡es by 524,475,L52 at the end of 2015, compared to 522,850,652, at the end of the previous

year, as showed in the following condensed Statement of Net Pos¡tion ofthe Pr¡mary Government.
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COMMOilWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUT{IOPAIJTY OF AGUAS BT'ETTAS, PUENTO MCO

sTArErúEIff Of IlEf l'oltmor{
As Of ¡u E :rc, 2015

2015 ChanÉie

GJrent arÉ other asts
Cap'rtal Assets

Total Assets

Orrent aod other liabilities

Long-term l¡ab¡lities

Total liaffiities

Ilefened infls of resources

lnvested ¡n capital assets, net of related debt

Resficted

Unr6tricted deficit

Total oet és€{s

7F55.863

2AA72,910

36,028,773

2,OO2,744

9,055,O78

9,4a1365 {1925502) -20,Á

25,480,442 2,992,46a t%

34,961,807 1,066,966 396

1,980,391 22,353

9,575,552 (520,4741

11.555,943 (498,121)

555,212 (498,121)

19,080,636 2.A22,353 15%

6,080,6S8 \777,12L\ -\3%

(2,310,682) t42O,7321 -18%

7X

-5%

4%tl-o57,A22

495,799

21,902,989

5303,577

12;t31,4741

$ 24.115,L52 $ 228fi,A52 $ L624,5OO 7%

4O,«n 0oo

30,(Eo.qx)

z),(xx),(x)o

10,ü)o,(x)o

r2015
a20t4

Totál Net Position



COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

STATEMEMT OF NEr PoslTloN

As OFIUNE 30, 2015

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY A5 A WHOLE (CONTINUED}

Approximately 23 percent of the Mun¡cipality's total revenue came from taxes, while 55 percent

resulted from grants and contributions, including federal aid. Charges for Services provide 2 percent of

the total revenues. The Municipal¡ty's expenses cover a range of services. The largest expenses were for

publicand work sanitat¡on 127%1, general administration 126%l and health and welfare (11%). As follow,

is presented a comparative analysis of governmental-wide data. With this analysis, the readers have

comparat¡ve information with the percentage of change ¡n revenues and expenses from prior year to

current year.

condensed Statement of Act¡v¡t¡es

Program revenues:
Charges for serv¡ces
operat¡ng grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

Geñetal revenues:
Propeny taxes
Munic¡pal license tax
Municipal sales and use tax
Grants and ent¡tlements
Other localtaxes
lnterest and investment earninC§

Other

Total revenues

Expenses:
Geñeral administratioñ
Public safety
Public works and sanitat¡on
Health and welfare
Culture and tour¡st development
Econom¡c development
Fam¡ly and social development
Planning
Edúcat¡on, culture and recreatioñal
Housing and urban Development
lnterest

Tota I expeñses

Change ¡n net assets

Net assets

Net assets, end of year

Change

$ 463,082
2,O79,694
2,L6\3aA

L,406,237
692,O75

1,443,299
6,5a9,363

ao4,302
44,983

533,242

$ 4!5,432
1,9s3,4O3
2,5-4r,559

2,4L3,a69
727,667

1,695,616
6,943,776

105,969
186,a09

47.650 !a%
125,A95 6%
19.759 a%

(1,306,932)
(35,592)
L47,683

(354,413)
(1,667)

(101426)

6A6,OO9

(54%)
(5%)

9%
(5%)

l2%)
(55%)

Qa%)

(1O%)

5%

2a%

2a%

7%

7 43,902 (2aO ,6201

a7,327,702 (1,67O,O63)15,657,639

3,670,3r7
664,644

3,434,945
L,433,324

266,734
230,O14
943,647
136,170

L,626,577
249,830
a92,aa5

3,734,L77
602,103

3,590,456
1,653,589

57A,961
1a2,390
934,807
L49,279

1,309,s70
311,OO3
400,395

L3,347,t30

(63,460) (2%\
62.545 tovo

24a,OA9 7%

t22O,265], (13%)

@a2,223) (s4%)
LL7,628 105%
44.440 5%
16,a91 1-4%

3L7.OO7 24%
(2L,t73) (7%)

492,490 423%

14,033,139

L,624,5o0

22,A50,6s2

$ 24,475,L52

3,940,572

1a,a70,080

$ 22.a50,652

12,356,O72)

3,940,572

$ 1,624,500
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Expenses 2015

r charges for s€rvices

I Operating grants and
contributions

¡ Cap¡talgrants and contribut¡ons

¡ Propefty tares

I Municipalsales and use tár

¡ Grants and entitlements

¡ oth€r locál taxes

¡ lnterest áñd investmelt eam¡ngs

Y Munic¡pal l¡cense tax

L

L

t
L
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¡ General adm¡n¡strat¡on

r Publ¡c safety

¡ Publicworks and sanitation

!Cultureand tourist
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! Health ¿nd welfare

¡ Economicdevelopment

¡ Education and recreat¡onal

¡ Family and social
d6relopm€nt

l. Planningand urban
development

¡ Hous¡ng¿nd Urban
Development
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

STATEME T OF NEr PosmoN
As OF JUNE 30, 2015

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY'S INDIVIDUAL FUNDS

Governmental Funds

The focus of the Municipality's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,

outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
Municipality's financing requirements. ln particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful

measure of a government's net resources available for spend¡ng at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Municipal¡ty's governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of 54,173,177, a decrease of S554,064 ¡n comparison w¡th the prior year.

W¡th¡n the governmental funds, it is included the general fund which is the chief operat¡ng fund of the
Municipal¡ty. As of June 30, 2075, the Munic¡palitys deficit amounted to 5577,331 a decrease of
5267,L78.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Over the course of the year, the Municipality Council rev¡sed the Municipali§/s budget in order to
include increases in revenues that were identif¡ed during the course of the fiscal year based on current
developments that pos¡tively affected the Mun¡c¡pality's finances. lncreases in budgeted expenditures
were also made since the law mandates a balanced budget.

The actual General Fund budgetary act¡v¡ties resulted ¡n an favorable balance of 5593,504 caused

mainly due to unexpected variances in revenue and expenditures.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

The Municipality's investment in cap¡tal assets as of June 30, 2015, amounts to 548,451,097 with an

accumulated deprec¡at¡on of S19,978,187 (including net depreciation charges for the year totaled

5L,L71,484l,leaving a net book value of 528,472,9L0. This ¡nvestment in capital assets includes land,

construction in progress, buildings, ¡mprovements, equ¡pment, infrastructure, furnishing, computers
and vehicles. lnfrastructure assets are items that are normally immovable and of value only to the
state, such as roads, bridges, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems, lighting systems, and similar
items.

The Mun¡c¡pal¡ty finances a s¡gn¡ficant portion of its construction activities through bond or notes
¡ssuances. The proceeds from bond and notes issuances des¡gnated for construction activities are

committed in ¡ts entirety for such purposes and cannot be used for any other purposes. As of June 30,

2015, the Municipality has 51,265,146 of unexpended proceeds mainly from bonds and notes
issuances that are comm¡tted to future construct¡on act¡vities.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

STATEMENT OF NEr PoslTroN

As OF JUNE 30, 2015

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (CONTINUED)

Debt Administrat¡on

The Puerto R¡co Legislature has established a l¡m¡tat¡on for the ¡ssuance of general obl¡gation mun¡cipal

bonds and notes for the payment of wh¡ch the good faith, credit and taxing power of each municipality
may be pledged.

The applicable law also requires that, ¡n order for a Munic¡pality to be able to ¡ssue addit¡onal general

obligation bonds and notes, such Municipality must have sufficient "payment capac¡ty'. Act No.64
provides that a Mun¡c¡pal¡ty has suff¡c¡ent "payment capacity" to incur addit¡onal general obl¡gation
debt if the depos¡ts ¡n such municipali§'s Redemption Fund and the annual amounts collected with
respect to such Municipality's Special Add¡tional Tax (as defined below), as projected by GDB, will be

suff¡c¡ent to service to maturity the Municipalivs outstanding general obligation debt and the
additional proposed general obligat¡on debt ("Payment Capaci§").

The Municipali§ ¡s requ¡red under appllcable law to levy the Special Additional Tax in such amounts as

shall be required for the payment of its general obl¡gat¡on municipal bonds and notes. ln add¡tion,
principal of and ¡nterest on all general obligation munic¡pal bonds and notes and on all municipal notes

¡ssued in anticipation of the issuance of general obligation bonds issued by the Municipality const¡tute

a first lien on the Munic¡pal¡ty's Basic Tax revenues.

Accord¡ngly, the Municipality's Basic Tax revenues would be available to make debt serv¡ce payments

on general obligatlon municipal bonds and notes to the extent that the Special Additional Tax levied by

the Munic¡pal¡ty, together with moneys on depos¡t ¡n the Municipality's Redemption Fund, are not

suff¡c¡ent to cover such debt serv¡ce. lt has never been necessary to apply Basic Taxes to pay debt
serv¡ce on general obl¡gat¡on debt of the Munic¡pal¡ty.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXI YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

fhe Munic¡pal¡ty rel¡es primar¡ly on property and mun¡c¡pal taxes as well as federal and state grants to carry out
the governmental activities. H¡storically, property and municipal taxes have been very pred¡ctable. Federal State

grant revenues may vary if new grants are available but the revenue also ¡s very predictable. Those factors
were considered when prepar¡ng the Municipali§/s budget for the fiscal year 2015-2016.

FINAL COMMENTS

The Mun¡cipal¡ty ¡s an autonomous governmental entity whose powers and authority vested on ¡ts

Executive and Legislat¡ve Branches are specifically established ¡n the Mun¡c¡pal Autonomous Act

approved in August 1991. By virtue of such powers, lt prov¡des a wide range of serv¡ces to its
constituents which includes, among others, public works, education, public safety, public housing,

health, community development, recreat¡on, waste disposal, welfare and others. The Mun¡c¡pality's
principal sources of revenues are derived from propefi taxes, munic¡pal license taxes, subsid¡es from
the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico's
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

STATEMENT OF NEr PoslrloN

As OF JUNE 30, 2015

FINAL COMMENTS (CONTINUED)

General Fund and contributions from the Tradit¡onal and Electronic Lottery sponsored by said

Government.

The Municipality's management is committed to a continued improvement in the confect¡on of a

budget that wills response to the needs of the public and private sectors ¡n accordance w¡th its

permissible revenues levels. lt further contemplates to ma¡ntain or improve its current levels of Net

Assets as ¡ndicat¡ve of a strong financial posit¡on wh¡ch has been identified as one of the ma¡n short and

long-term object¡ves of the Municipal¡ty.

The new GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and F¡nancial Reporting for Pensions, an amendment to
GASB Statement No. 27, were effective for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. This Statement

requires partic¡pants of cost-sharing defined benefit pension plans that are adm¡nistered through trusts
that comply with certa¡n criteria to recognize ¡n their financ¡al statements the¡r proport¡onate share of
the collective net pens¡on liability, net pens¡on expense and deferred outflows/¡nflows of resources

related to pensions. The Municipality's pension plan is administered by the Employees Retirement

System Administration (ESR).

The ESR has not issued ¡ts aud¡ted financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30,2014 (the

plan's measurement date), and as a result, the Municipality of Yabucoa could not comply wlth the

accounting and financ¡al report¡ng requ¡rements set forth in GASB Statement No. 68. Consequently, the
Mun¡cipality's financial statements do not report or disclose the required informat¡on for its pens¡on

plan for the fiscal year 2014-15.

FINANCIAL CONTACT

The Municipality's financial statements are designed to present users (c¡tizens, taxpayer, customers,

investors and creditors) w¡th a general overview of the Mun¡c¡pal¡ty's finances and to demonstrate the

Municipality's accountability. lf you have questions about the report or need additional financ¡al

informat¡on, contact the Municipality's Chief Financial Officer.
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

STAIEMENf OF NET POSITION

As OFJUNE 30, 2015

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

TIABILITIE' DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND NET POSITION

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash with fiscal agent
Account receivable:

Governmental agenc¡es

Property tax
Sale and usage tax

Other assets

Capital assets, net

Total Assets

Líab¡lities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Advances from other government
Due to other government
Long-term debt:

Due w¡thin one year
Due in more than one year

Total liab¡l¡t¡es

Deferred inflows of resources:

Deferred munic¡pal patents

Net Position:
lnvested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restr¡cted for:

Debt serv¡ce

Replacements and others

Cap¡tal project and others

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

GOVERNMENTAT
ACTIVITIES

S 2,s28,89s
3,237,935

77L,777
L,LIO,O47

2L6,906

28.079.259

353M.279

7,257 ,792
353,477
369,423

7,534,4?7
7 .257 .393

t0.776.5t2

49s.799

27,902,989

2,7L5,643

2,587,934
(3.134.558)

fu,e,-L.so&

BUSINESS -
TYPE

ACTIVITIES

5225,O54

65,849

393,6s1

684.554

22,Os2

66,847
792,4!L

281,310

403.244

5@

ÍOTAT

5 2,753,949
3,237,93s

t7t,777
L,tLO,O47

2t6,906
65,849

28,472.970

36.028.773

7,279,844
353,477
369,423

r,505,274
7 ,449.804

Lt.057.822

495.799

27,902,989

2,715,643

2,s87,934

Q.731.4t4],

fuEs.ts2

The accompanying notes are an ¡ntegral part of these financial statements.

14



COMMOÍ{WEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUTIICIPAUTY OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

STATEME]ÚI OF AcnvmES
FoR THE YEAn EÍ{DEDru E 30,2015

PROGRAM REVEÍ{UÉ,

OPERATIÍ{G CAPITAT

CHARGEFOR GRAI{ÍSA D GRANTSAÍ{D
SERV|CES COÍ{T BUnOf{S CONrBlBtmOf{SFUÍ{CNOÍ{5 At{D PROGRAMS

Governmental act¡vit¡es:
General adm¡nistrat¡on
Publ¡c safety
Education and recreational
Public works and sanitation
Health and welfare
Culture and tour¡st development
Economic development
Family and social development
Planning and urban development
lnterest

Total governmental activ¡ties

Busi ness type-act¡vities:
Housing
lnterest
Bus¡ness type - act¡v¡t¡es

Total

EXPENSES

s (3,670,317)
(664,588)

(1,626,5771

(3,838,94s)

17,433,3241
(265,738)
(230,018)
(983,547)
(136,170)

l.875.2261

(13.725.5s0)

(289,830)
(16.659)

(305.489)

l14p3r[¡r¡]

57,744

87,347

5 779,375
2,to7

833,521

1,064,595

NET

(EXPEf{SEl/

REVE UE

s(3,483,198)
(662,s81)
(70s,s09)

1L,677,627l.
(358,529)

1266,738l.
(230,018)
(983,647)
(135,170)

1876.2261

(9.390.343)

77 ,96r
(15.5s9)

61,302

s2,151,318

2.161.31895.291 2.079.698

367,797

367.791

s463.082 s2.029-698 s2J6L:r18 5I9329.0t1)

(Cont¡nue)
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF AGUAS BUENA' PUERTO RICO

STATEMETür OF Acnvrfl Es (Cor{TNUED)

FoR THE YEAR Er{DEDJui¡E 30, 2015

Net (expense)/revenue

General revenue:
Taxes:

Property taxes
Municipal tax
Sale and usage tax
Construct¡on excise tax

Grants and entitlements
Rent
lnterest
Other

Total general revenues

Changes in net posit¡on

Net position at beginn¡ng

Net posit¡on at end

GOVERNMENTAI.
ACnVmES

s (9.390,343)

L,706,237
692,O7s

t,u3,299
1o4,302

6,589,363
L54,974

84,983
376,835

10,952.068

7,567,725

22.570,ta3

s24.02L908

BUSINESS.TYPE

ACTIVITIES

S 61.302

1,473

1,473

62,775

340,469

s403.244

TOTAT

s(9.329.041)

L,106,237
692,075

L,8/.3,299
104,302

6,589,363
L54,974

84,983
378.308

10.953.541

L,624,500

22.850.652

524.475.L52_

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

BAtA¡tcE SHEET

GovERNMENTAT FUNDs

As OFJUNE 30, 2015

ASSETS:

Cash:

cash in bánk

Cash w¡th f¡scal agent

Receivables:
Property taxes
Sale and usage tax
Due from other governments
Due from other funds

Total assets

uABtuTtE DEFERRED TNFLOWS OF

RESOURCES AND FUND BATANCE

L¡abil¡t¡es:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Advances from other governments
Due to other fund
Due to other governments

Total liabil¡ties

Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred property tax
Deferred municipal tax

Fund balances:
Restr¡cted for:

Debt serv¡ce
Cap¡tal project
Other purpose

Unass¡Bned

Total fund balances

DEBT

SERVICE

FUNDS

57,967,718

224,52r
774,457

s984,094

s2.300.696 s984.094

LOAN OTHER TOTAL

S4145,M0 GOVERNMENTAL GOVERNMENTAL
FUND FUNDS FUNDS

GENERAT

FUND

s 90s,490
72,305

885,526
702,449

346.000

s2.zst.77t

57,623,4O5
279,8L6

L7L,L77
246.000

s2.320.398

77,O8I
353,477
346,000

s2,s28,895
3,237,934

t,Lto,047
216,906
t7L,t77
592.000

s7,856,959

1,079,830

353,477
592,000
369,423

7.394.730

793,753
495,799

L.289.O52

2,162,574
984,094

1,603,840
|.577.33t1

4.173,777

s7-856t59

7,067,7 49

246,000
369.423

7.674,ú2

655,131
495.799

1.150,930

716.558

L38,722

738,722

2,L62,574
984,O94

1,603,840
(577.331l.

677 .3371 2.762.57 4

Total liabilit¡es, defer¡ed of resources and
fund balance §2.251.777 52.300.696

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financ¡al statements.

984,094

s984-09L

1,603,840

s2320t98
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUÍ{ICIPATITY OF AGUAS BUENA' PUERTO RICO

REcoNcruAnoN OF THE GovERNMEtúrAl FUNDs

BATANCE SHEEÍ To THE STATEMENT Or NET PosmoN
As OFJUNE 30, 2015

Fund balances ¡n governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities ¡n the Statement of Net Position ore
different because:

5 4,L73,t78

Capital assets used in governmental activit¡es are not financial resources and

therefore are not reported in the funds 28,079,259

Deferred property tax revenue in governmental funds financial statements
whereas recorded as revenue in the governmental activities 793,253

Long-term liabilities and accrual expenses are not due and payable in the
current period and therefore are not reported ¡n the governmental funds:

Bonds and notes payable (7,429,000l.

Compensated absences {L,2L7,3L61
Accrued ¡nterest (777,9621

Amount due to cRlM (149,504)

Net pos¡tion of govemmentol dct¡vities S2!t 0ZL90I!

The accompanyinB notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAI,ITY OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

STATEMEMT OF REVENUES, EXPENDmJRES

AND CHANGES IN FUND EALAÍ{CE.GOVERNME]ÜTAI FUNDS

FoR THT YEAR ENDED,UNE 30, 2015

DEBT

GENERAI SERVICE

FUND FUNDS

OTHER

GOVERNMENTAT
FUNDS

s4,241,016
45,676

77.615

4.344.307

189,016
2,702

776,23L
2,696,455
1,083,158

737,642
2t,351

TOTAL

GOVERNMENTAI.

FUNDS

s 2,440,113
692,O75

7,843,299
704,302

10,830,379
232,650

84,983
394.450

16.622.25r

3,444,621
624,897

1,468,816
7,444,9L7
L,415,L74

258,O23
227,936
427,O94
t36,L70

44t,95L
886.722

LOAN

94,14s,OoO
FUf{DS

Revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes
Mun¡cipaltaxes
Sale and usage tax
Construct¡on exc¡se taxes

Grants and entitlements
Rental income
lnterest
Other

Total Revenues

Erpenditures:
General adm¡nistrat¡on
Public safety
Education and recreat¡onal
Public works and san¡tation
Health and welfare
Culture and tourist development
Econom¡c development
Family and social development
Plann¡ng and urban development
Debt service:

Princ¡pal
lnterest

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Operat¡ng transfer ¡n
Operat¡ng transfer out

Total other financing sources

Excess of revenues and other flnanc¡ng source
over (under) expenditures and other financ¡nt
sources

Fund batance at besinnins of year O\tr(
Fund balance at end of year pÑFL

987
(987)

987 (987)

267,fiA 293,960 (ss3,ss4)

(844.509) 1.868.614 L.s37.648

s__157233x 52,@§14 s_184@1

4.905.955 77.L76,375

(s61.648) (554.064)

987
(987)

(s61, 8) (554,064)

2.165.488 4,727.24L

st603,840 5_4il3-t71

s 1,s51,021
692,O75

1,113,428
104,302

6,589,363
t46,974
83,996

376.83s

10.667.994

3,2ss,605
622,789
692,58s

4,794,904
332,016
258,O23

227,936
689,4s2
114,819

6,9s1
6.719

10.401.803

266.79t

s 879,092

729,87L

987

1.609.9s0

43s,000
880.003

1.315.003

294.947

s ss3,554

553,554

(553,554)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these f¡nanc¡al statements.
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

REcoNcrlranoN OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, ExpENDrruREs

AND CHANGES II{ FUND BAI.ANCES OF GovERNMENTAI.

FUNos To THE STATEMENT OI ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Net change ¡n fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Act¡vities are

d¡fferent because:

s (ss4,063)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities and changes in net position, the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful l¡ves and reported as depreciat¡on expense. Th¡s ¡s the amount of
capital assets recorded ¡n the current period. 4,097,246

Depreciation expense on cap¡tal assets is reported in the statement of activ¡ties, but ¡t
does not requirethe use of current financia I resources. Therefore, depreciation
expense ¡s not reported as expenditure in Bovernmental funds. (1,110,828)

Governmental funds report principal payments on long-term debts as expenditures,
whereas the principal payments reduce the long-term debt ¡n the statement of net
pos¡tion. 435,000

Change in accrued expenses which does not requ¡re the use of current financial
resources:
Estimated liabil¡ties for landfill closures and post-lower costs
Accrued interest 10,496
Compensat¡ng absences 76,799
Amount due to CRIM 6,951
Deferred property tax (1,333,876)

Changes in net pos¡t¡on of governmental activities t1161J25

The accompanying notes are an ¡ntegral part of these financial statements.
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COMMONWEALITI OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAUTY OF AGUAS BUET{AS, PUERTO RICO

STATEMETT oF FI A cull PosmoN - PRoPRIETARY FUf{D

Jur{E 30, 2015

AssErs

Current Assets:
Cash

Other current assets

Property and Equipment

Restricted deposits

Other Assets

LIABIIMEs Af{D NEf POSMON

PRoPRIEÍARY FUND

EsPrRnu SArro PRorEcr

s 80,072
37 .768

t77,UO

393,6s1

744,982

28,081

S68!t 5!1

5 56,u7
22,052
88,899

792.4tL
281,310

403.244

s6845!t

Liabll¡ties:
Current l¡abil¡ties:

Current matur¡t¡es of mortgage note
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Long term-debt net of current maturit¡es

Net position

Total l¡ab¡l¡ties and net pos¡t¡on

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these f¡nanc¡al statements.
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COMMONWEATIH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF AGUAS BUENA' PUERTO RICO

STATEME fi oF AcnvmEs - PRoPRIETARY FUND

YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30,2015

Revenues:
Rent
Financ¡al

Total revenues

Expenses:
Admin¡strative
Utilities
Operating Maintenance

Taxes and insurance
Depreciation
lnterest

Total Expenses

Change ¡n net position

Project net pos¡t¡on, beginnin8 of year

Net position, end of year

PRoPRIEÍARY FUND

EsPtR[u SaNTo PRoJEcÍ

5367,797
L.473

369,264

118,040
7 ,148

7L,359

32,630
50,556
15.555

306.489

62,775

340.469

s403.244

The accompany¡ng notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMMOÍ{WEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAUTY OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

STATEMEñTT OF CA'H FLOWS . PROPRIETARY FUf{D5

FoRTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Cash flow from operatin8 activit¡es:
Cash received from rentals
lnterest received
Other operat¡nB recelved

Cash used

Administrat¡ve
Utilities
Salaries and wages
Operating and maintenance
Property and liabili§ insurance

lnterest on mortgage
Management fees

Net cash prov¡ded by operating activ¡ties

Cash flow from ¡nvest¡ng act¡v¡t¡es:
Purchase of property and equ¡pment
Deductions from reserve for replacements and interest

Net cash used by inyest¡ng act¡v¡ties

Cash flows from financ¡ng act¡vities:

Mortgage pr¡nc¡pal payments

Net cash used by financing activities

Net increase ¡n cash

Cash at beginning of the year

Cash at ending of the year

PROPRIEÍARY FUND

EsPrRffu Saifo PRoJEcr

s341,552
252

L.27t
343.135

42,O94

L2,792
tr7,96L
29,7U

5,453
t7,067
26,100

251.251

91.884

172,7071.

50.413

(22,2941

16r.7241

(6l,7Z4l

7,866

72,206

s_80-072

(Continue)
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF AGUAS BUENA' PUERTO RICO

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS . PROPRIETARY FUNDS (CONNNUED)

FoR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Reconciliation of change in net position to net cash provided by operat¡ng activ¡t¡es:

PRoPRIETARY FUND

EsPtRmJ SaNTo PRoJEcr

cash floln from operat¡ng act¡vities:

Change in net pos¡tion S 62,776

Adjustments to reconcile change in
net posit¡on to net cash provided by
operat¡ng act¡v¡t¡es:

Depreciat¡on 60,555
lncrease ¡n accounts rece¡vable 126,7571

lncrease (decrease) in:
Accounts payable (3,081)

Accrued vacations and bonus (L,299l.

lnterest on mortgage (411)

Total adjustments 29,108

Net cash provided by operating activities S1L88¿t

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financ¡al statements.
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF AGUAS BUEI{AS, PUERTO RICO

NoTEsToTHE FI ANCIAI STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2015

1. ORGANIZATION AND REPORTING ENTITY

Or8anization

The Mun¡c¡pality of Aguas Buena's (the Munic¡pality) is a political and legal entity with full legislative and
adm¡nistrat¡ve faculties in every affair of municipal character, with perpetual success¡on, ex¡stence and
legal personal¡ty separate and independent from the governmental of the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico.

The municipal government ¡s comprised of the execut¡ve and legislative bodies, which are elected every
four years in the Puerto Rico general elections. The executive power is exercised by the Mayor and the
legislative power by the Municipal Legislative Body, which has fourteen members.

The Municipality provides the following serv¡ces to its community: health, publ¡c works, education,
public safety, housing, community and soc¡al services, welfare, culture and recreation, as well as many
other Beneral and adm¡nistrative services.

Reporting ent¡ty

A reporting entity consists of the prlmary Bovernment, component units, and other organizations that
are included to ensure that f¡nanc¡al statements are not mislead¡ng. The primary government of the
Munic¡pal¡ty cons¡sts of all funds and departments that are not legally separate from the Mun¡cipal¡ty.
For the Municipality of Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico, these ¡nclude various services such as police
protection, recreat¡on (including parks), street maintenance and repair, sanitation, and general
administrat¡ve services. The operat¡on of each of these activit¡es is directly controlled by Municipali§/s
Legislative Body through the budgetary process.

Component units are legally separate organizat¡ons for wh¡ch the Municipality is financially accountable.
The Municipality has no component units.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POTICIES

The account¡ng and reporting policies of the Municipality relat¡ng to the funds included in the
accompanying basic financial statements conform to accounting pr¡nciples generally accepted in the
United States of Amer¡ca applicable to state and local governments. Generally accepted account¡ng
principles for local governments ¡nclude those princ¡ples prescribed by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB), the American lnstitute of Certif¡ed Public Accountants ¡n the publication
ent¡tled Audits of State and Local Governmental Units and by the Financial Account¡ng Standards Board
(when applicable). The more s¡gn¡ficant pol¡c¡es of the Mun¡cipality are described below.

Basic of presentation, Bas¡s of Account¡ng.
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Government-wide statements

The government-wide financial statements (consists of the statement of net pos¡tion and the statement

of activit¡es) these statements report information on all the activ¡ties of the primary government and its

component units. For the most part, the effect of ¡nterfund activ¡ty has been removed from these

statements. Governmental act¡vities which normally are supported mainly by taxes and

intergovernmental revenues are reported separately from business-§pe activ¡ties, which rely to a

signif¡cant extent on fees and charges for support. L¡kew¡se, the pr¡mary government is reported

separately from certa¡n legally separate component un¡ts for which the pr¡mary government is f¡nancially

accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to wh¡ch the direct expenses of a given function or

segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a

speclfic function or segment. Program revenues include a) charges to customers or applicants who

purchase, use, or d¡rectly benefit from goods, services, or pr¡vileges provided by a given function or

segment and b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meet¡ng the operat¡onal or cap¡tal

requ¡rements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among

program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

program-specific capital and operat¡ng grant and contributions consist of transactions that are e¡ther

mandatory or voluntary nonexchange transact¡ons w¡th other governments, organizations, or individuals

that restr¡ct the resources for use in a particular program. Cap¡tal grants and contribut¡ons consist of
capital assets or resources that are restricted for capital purposes - to purchase, construct or renovate

capital assets associated w¡th a specif¡c program. Operating grants and contributions consist of
resources that are required to be used to finance the costs of operating a specific program or can be

used e¡ther for operating or cap¡tal purposes of a specific program. Restricted capital and operating

grants and contributions are program revenues because they are specifically attributable to a program

are reducing the net expense of that program to the Mun¡cipality. They are reported net of estimated

uncollectible amounts.

Fund f¡nancial statements

The fund financ¡al statements segregate transactions related to certa¡n functions or activ¡ties in separate

funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. These statements

present each major fund as a separate column on the fund financial statements; all non-major funds are

aggregated and presented in a single column.

The Municipality reports the following major governmental funds:

A) General Fund

This is the operating fund of the Mun¡c¡pality and accounts for all financial resources, except those

required to be accounted for in another fund.
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B) Debit service funds

This fund accounts for resources accumulated and payments made for principal and ¡nterest on long-
term general obligat¡on debt of governmental funds.

C) Loan 54,145,000 fund

Th¡s fund accounts for proceed and disbursements from a general obligation for cap¡tal projects.

Measurement focus, basis of account¡ng and f¡nancial statement presentat¡on

Governmental wide financial latements

The government-wide Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Act¡vit¡es, both government and
business type act¡vities, are presented using the econom¡c resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of account¡ng. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time the
l¡ab¡l¡ty ¡s incurred, regardless of the tim¡ng of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and s¡m¡lar ¡tems are recognized as revenue as
soon as all eligibility requirements ¡mposed by the provider have been met.

As a general rule the effect of interfund act¡vity has been elim¡nated from the government-wide financial
statements. Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for
goods, serv¡ces, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contribut¡ons, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. lnternally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Governmental fund financial statements

The governmental fund financial statements are presented using the current financ¡al resources
measurement focus and the mod¡fied accrual basis of account¡ng. Revenues are recognized as soon as
they are both measurable and available. Under this method revenues are considered to be available
when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current per¡od. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected
within 50 days of the end of the current fiscal per¡od. Expend¡tures generally are recorded when a
l¡ability is incurred, except for debt service, compensated absences and claims and judgments
expenditures whlch are reported when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and ¡nterest associated w¡th the current fiscal period are all
considered to be suscept¡ble to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
period. Only the port¡on of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is
considered to be suscept¡ble to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the government.
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Governmental fund fi nancial statements (cont¡nued)

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government's policy to
use restricted resources first, than unrestr¡cted resources as they are needed.

Propr¡etary fund financial statements include a statement of financial position, a statement of act¡vities,
and a statement of cash flows. The proprietary fund includes a low income housing project know as
Espiritu Santo Project.

Propr¡etary funds are accounted for using the "economic resources" measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities (whether current of noncurrent) are include on
the statement of net pos¡t¡on. The statement of revenues, expenses and change in fund net pos¡t¡on
present increases (revenues) and decrease (expenses) ¡n total net pos¡tion. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are
recognized in the period in wh¡ch the llability is incurred.

Operating revenues in the propr¡etary fund are those revenues that are generated from the primary
operating of the fund. All other revenues are reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses
are those expenses that are essential to the primary operat¡ons of the fund. All other expenses are
reported as non-operating expenses.

Cash, cash equivalents, cash w¡th f¡scal agent

The Munic¡pality's finance d¡rector is responsible for investing available resources. The Munic¡pality is
restricted by law to invest only ¡n sav¡ngs accounts and cert¡ficates of deposit with banks qualified as a
depository of public funds by the Puerto Rico Treasury Department (PRTD) or in instruments of the
Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GDB). The Municipality's policy is to invest any excess
cash in interest bearing deposits with ¡nstitut¡ons qualified by the PRTD. Earnings from these funds are
recorded in the corresponding fund as interest income.

Cash with fiscal agent in the governmental fund consists of unused proceeds from bonds and notes
issued for the acquisition and construction of major capital improvements. Cash with fiscal agent ¡n the
debt service fund represents special additional property tax collections retained by the Municipal
Revenue Collection center (CRIM) and sales tax collections retained by the Commonwealth of puerto
Rico and restricted for the payment of the Municipality's debt service, as established by law. Cash with
fiscal agent and deposited in the GDB.

Pursuant to the Statement of lnvestment Guidelines for the Government of the Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico the balances depos¡ted in commercial banks by the Municipal¡ty are insured by the Federal
Depos¡t lnsurance Corporation (FDIC) Senerally up to a maximum of $250,000 per depos¡tor. tn addit¡on,
public funds deposited in commercial banks by the Municipal¡ty are fully collateralized. All secur¡ties
pledged as collateral are held by agents designated by the Commonwealth's Secretary of Treasury but
not in the Municipality's name. Deposits with GDB are uninsured and uncollateralized. However, no
losses related to defaults by GDB on depos¡t transactions have been incurred by the Mun¡cipality
through June 30, 2015.
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The GDB's liquidity was adversely affected by a s¡gnif¡cant increase in credit spreads for obl¡gations of the

Commonwealth and its public corporations, the Commonwealth's limited capital market access, and a

significant reduction of liquidity in the local Puerto Rico cap¡tal markets. Then, the credit rat¡ng

downgrades could further adversely affect the GDB's liquidity. However, no losses related to defaults by

GDB on deposit transactions have been ¡ncurred by the Municipali§ through June 30, 2015.

The Municipality considers all investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash

equ¡valents.

lnterfund receivables and payables

Activities between funds that are representat¡ve of lending/borrowing arrangements outstandinB at the

end of the fiscal year are referred to as either due to/from other funds (i.e., the current portion of
interfund loans) or advances to/from other funds (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans).

lnterfunds receivables and payables between funds wlthin the governmental activities are el¡minated in

the statement of net position.

Cap¡tal assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure (which is normally
immovable and of value only to the Municipality, such as roads, bridges, streets sidewalks, and drainage

system), are reported in the government-wide financial statements.

Capital assets purchased or acquired are carried at h¡storical cost or est¡mated historical cost.

Contributed assets are recorded at fair market value as of the date donated. Additions, improvements

and other capital outlays that signif¡cantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs

incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. When historical cost ¡s not ava¡lable it is
est¡mated us¡ng historic sales of the year of the acqu¡s¡t¡on of the related capital assets.

Depreciation in capital assets is calculated on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful

lives:

lnfrastructure
Bu¡ld¡ng
lmprovement to land
Vehicles
Machinery and equ¡pment
Computer and pr¡nter
Furniture

50 years

40 years

25 years

7 years

10 years

3 years

15 years
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lmpairment of Capital Assets

The Municipali§ periodically evaluates long-term assets for impairment in accordance with GASB
Statement No. 34, (Bosic F¡nanciol Stotements - ond Monagement's Discussion and Anolysis - for Stote ond
Locol Governmentsl and GASB No.42, (Accounting ond Financiol Reporting for lmpo¡rment of Copitot Assets
and for lnsurance Recoveries Governments) are required to evaluate prominent events or changes in
circumstances affect¡ng capital assets to determine whether impa¡rment of a cap¡tal asset has occurred.
Such events or changes in c¡rcumstances that may be indicative of impairment include evidence of physical
damage, enactment or approval of laws or regulat¡ons or other changes in environmental factors,
technological changes or ev¡dence of obsolescence, changes ¡n the manner or durat¡on of use of a capital
asset, and construction stoppage. A capital asset generally should be considered impaired if both (a) the
decline in serv¡ce utility of the capital asset is large in magnitude and (b) the event or change in
circumstance is outside the normal life cycle of the cap¡tal asset.

lmpa¡red capital assets that will no longer be used by the government should be reported at the lower of
carrying value or fair value. lmpa¡rment losses on capital assets that w¡ll continue to be used by the
government should be measured using the method that best reflects the dimin¡shed service util¡ty of the
capital asset. lmpa¡rment of capital assets w¡th physical damage generally should be measured using a
restoration cost approach, an approach that uses the estimated cost to restore the capital asset to identify
the portion of the historical cost of the capital asset that should be written off. lmpairment of capital
assets that are affected by enactment or approval of laws or regulations or other changes in
environmental factors or are subject to technological changes or obsolescence generally should be
measured using a service un¡ts approach, an approach that compares the service units provided by the
capital asset before and after the impairment event or change in c¡rcumstance. lmpairment of capital
assets that are subject to a change ¡n manner or duration of use generally should be measured using a
service units approach, as described above, or us¡ng deflated deprec¡ated replacement cost, an approach
that quantifies the cost of the serv¡ce currently being provided by the capital asset and converts that cost
to historical cost.

Risk financing

The Municipality carries insurance to cover casualty, theft, tort claims and other losses through a private
company. Cost of insurance is deducted from the gross property tax collections by the Municipal
Revenue collection center (the "cRtM") for the year ended June 30,2ols amounted to 5224,110. The
current insurance policies have not been cancelled or terminated. The CRIM also deducted $173,L45 for
workers compensation insurance covering all mun¡c¡pal employees.

Compensated absences

Employees accumulate vacation leave at a rate of 2.5 days per month up to maximum of 60 days. unpa¡d
vacat¡on t¡me accumulated is fully vested to the employees from the first day of work. Employees
accumulate sick leave at a rate of 1.5 days per month up to a maximum 90 days. ln the event of
employee res¡gnat¡on, the employee is paid for accumulated vacations days up to the maximum allowed.
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Separation from employment pr¡or to use of all or part of the sick leave terminates all rights for
compensation, except for employees with ten years or more of service who are entitled to sick leave pay

up to the maximum allowed.

Employees' maximum allowed vacations and vested sick benefits are accounted for in the Statement of
Net Position.

Fund Balance

The fund balances amounts are reported as nonspendable restr¡cted, comm¡tted, assigned and

unassigned, based on the relat¡ve strength of the constra¡nts that control how speclfic amounts can be

spent, as described follows:

Nonsoendable - Represent resources that cannot be spent read¡ly with cash or are legally or
contractually required not to be spent, including but not limited to inventories, prepaid items,
long-term balances of loans and notes receivable.

Restr¡cted - Represent resources that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by

constitutional provisions, external resource providers (externally lmposed by creditors or
grantors), or through enabling legislation (that is, legislat¡on that creates a new revenue sources

and restrict its use). Effect¡vely, restr¡ctions may be changed or lifted only with the consent of
resource providers.

Committed - Represent resources used for specific purposes, imposed by formal act¡on of the
ent¡ty's highest level of decision mak¡ng authority (governing body through resolut¡ons) and can

only be charged by similar resolut¡ons, no later than the end of the fiscal year.

Assisned - Represent resources ¡ntended to be used by the ent¡ty for specific purposes but do
not meet the criter¡a to be classified as restr¡cted or committed (generally resolut¡ons approved
by the govern¡ng body). lntent can be expressed by the governing body, or by and official or
body to which the governing body delegates authority ¡n conformity with the bylaws of the
Author¡ty. ln governmental funds other than the general fund, assigned fund balance represents
the remain¡ng amount that is not restricted or committed.

Unassigned - Represent the residual classification for the entity's general fund and includes all

spendable amounts not contained in the other classificat¡ons. ln other funds, the unassigned

class¡fication is used only to report a deficit balance resulting from overspending for specific
purpose for which amounts had been restr¡cted, committed, or assigned.

*

.:.

*
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.:.
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Pensions

GASB 58 requires that the pension expenses, as well as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pension be recognized for employer's proportionate share of collective
pension expense and collective deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions. The employer/s proportionate share should be determined using the employer's proportion
of the collective net pens¡on liability. However, as of the date that f¡nancial statement has been ¡ssued,
the information related to the pension plans ¡s not available and accordingly, it has not been included in
the accompany¡ng financial statements of the Municipal¡ty for the year ended June 30, 2015.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conform¡ty with account¡ng principles generally accepted ¡n
the United States of Amer¡ca requires management to make estimates and assumpt¡ons that affect the
reported amounts of assets and l¡abilit¡es, and disclosure of cont¡nBent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during
the report¡ng period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through March 15,20f6, the date the f¡nancial statements
were evaluated to be issued.

3. PROPERWTAX

The personal property tax is self assessed by the taxpayer on a return, wh¡ch is to be filed by May 15 of
each year with the Municipal Revenue Collector Center (the CRIM), a governmental entity created by the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. Real property tax is assessed by the CRIM on each piece of real state.

The assessment is made as of January 1 of each year and is based on current values for personal
property and on estimated value as of 1957 for real property tax. The tax on personal property must be
paid in full together w¡th the return by May 15. The tax on real property may be paid in two installments
by July 1 and January 1.

The CRIM is responsible for the b¡ll¡ng and collections of real and personal property taxes on behalf of all
the municipalit¡es of Puerto R¡co. Before the beginning of each fiscal year, the CRIM informs the
Mun¡c¡pality of the estimated amount of property tax expected to be collected for the ensuing fiscal
year. Throughout the year, the CRIM advances funds to the Municipality based on the init¡al est¡mated
collect¡ons. The CRIM is required by law to prepare a settlement statement on a fiscal year basis, where
by a comparison ¡s made between the amounts advanced to the Mun¡c¡pality and amounts actually
collected from taxpayers.
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Th¡s settlement has to be completed on a prelim¡nary basis not later than three months after fiscal year-
end, and a f¡nal settlement made not later than six months after year-end. lf the CRtM rem¡ts to the
Municipal¡ty property tax advances, which are less than the tax actually collected, a receivable from the
CRIM ¡s recorded at June 30. However, if advances exceed the amount actually collected bythe CRIM, a
l¡ability to the CRIM is recorded at June 30.

Residential real property occupied by ¡ts owner ¡s exempt by law from the payment of property taxes on
the first 515,000 ofthe assessed value. For such exempt amounts, the Puerto R¡co Treasury Department
assumes payment of the basic tax to the Municipal¡t¡es, except for property assessed at less than 53,500
for which no payment is made. As part of Law No. 83 of August 30, 1991, as amended, the exempt
amount to be paid by Puerto Rico Treasury Department to the Munic¡palities was frozen as of January 1,
1992. ln addit¡on, the law grants a tax exception from the payment of personal property taxes of up to
S50,000 of the assessed value to retailers having annual net sales of less than S15O,OOO.

The annual rate for fiscal year 2015 is 10.53% for real property and 8.53% for personal property of wh¡ch
!.03% ot both tax rates are for the redempt¡on of public debt issued by the Commonwealth of puerto
Rico. The remaining percentage ¡s distributed as follows: (a) 5.0% and 4.0%, respectively, represent the
Municipal¡ty's basic proper§ tax rate, which is appropriated for general purposes and accounted for in
the general fund. A port¡on of such amount is deposited in an equalization fund together with a
percentage of the net revenues of the Puerto Rico electronic lottery and subsidy from the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. From such fund, a distr¡bution is made to all munic¡palit¡es and (b) 3.5%
of both tax represents the special ad valorem tax restr¡cted for debt service and accounted for in the
debt service fund. The Commonwealth contributes an annual tax rate of 0.2% of the property tax
collected and the rema¡n¡ng rate is ¡mposed to the taxpayer.

The composit¡on of property taxes receivable and the related deferred revenues is a follows at June 30,
2015:

General
Fund

s_i85,526

l-655,1:u

s 224.52\

5138J22

S_iJ1o-047

s___793,253

Debt service
Fund Total

Gross property taxes receivable
Less allowance for uncollectible accounts

Net property taxes receivable

Deferred (unavailable) property
tax revenues in GFFS

S8,s1s,3s7 5z,tss,\92 S10,573,s49
(7.529.831) (1.933.671) (9,553.s02)
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4. VOTUME OF BUSINESS TAX

The municipal l¡cense tax is levied annually based on the volume of business of certain businesses and
industrial organ¡zat¡ons that operate in the Municipality. The tax rates are !.5O% for financing
institut¡ons and .50% for the other business ¡nstitutions. The taxpayers must f¡le a return not later than
April 15 of every year and the tax is payable in two ¡nstallments, due in July 1 and January 1 of the
following fiscal year. The amount levied could be paid with a five percent (5%) discount ¡f payment is
made on or before the filing date. The Mun¡c¡pal¡ty levied and collected dur¡ng the year ended June 30,
2oL5,5495,799 corresponding to the following fiscal year volume of business tax. This amount was
recorded as deferred revenue, and is presented as a liab¡l¡ty in the accompanying financial statements.

5. SALE AND USAGE TAX

Pursuant to an amendment to Puerto Rico lnternal Revenue code, Act 7!7 of luly 4,2006, the Municipal
Leg¡slature approved a city tax contribution (SUT), effective October 3, 2005 to 1.5% over all transactions
of sales of goods and services made on Aguas Buenas boundaries. The reta¡ls are requ¡red to file monthly
sales tax returns by 10h days following the month in which the taxes are collected.

Pursuant to the provision at the Act 72-2075 and effect¡ve July 1, 2015, the citizenship contribution was
uniform¡ty established in 7.5%, for all the Municipal¡ty of Puerto Rico, of which 1% is collected by the
Mun¡cipality and the remain¡ng 0.5% is be collected by the Treasury Department of the Commonwealth
of Puerto R¡co. A portion of the amount collected by the Treasury Department is submitted to Municipal
F¡nance Corporation (COFIM, by is its spanish acronym), a redempt¡on fund for financing cap¡tal project
to the municipal¡ties.

CoFIM is a public corporation and ¡nstrumental¡ty of the Commonwealth of puerto R¡co, attached to the
Government Development Bank. COFIM is authorized to ¡ssue and use other financing mechanisms to
pay or refinance, directly or ind¡rectly, in whole or in part, the debts of the municipalit¡es of the
Commonwealth payable or backed by the mun¡c¡pal sales and use tax. COFIM rece¡ves, from the first
revenues of the municipal sales and use tax collected, the greater of: (i) an amount computed by apply¡ng
a 0.3% fixed tax rate to the total revenues collected, or (ii) a fixed amount that increases annually, known
as the Annual Fixed lncome. These revenues, which are deposited ¡n COFIM's Redemption Fund, are used
to pay and secure the debt issued by COFIM. As an independent corporat¡on, COFIM has the same
powers, r¡ghts and faculties as the GDB under its Charter.

5. GRANTS AND ENTITLEMENTS REVENUE

Grants and ent¡tlements revenue cons¡sts of contribut¡ons received from certa¡n quasi-public
corporations of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, such as the Puerto Rico Electr¡c power Authority.
Also, the Municipality rece¡ves some subsidies from the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico which include,
among others, a subsidy for general operations and for the financing of capital improvements. The
¡ntergovernmental revenues are recorded in the general fund, except for those that are legally restricted
for expenditure for specified purposes which are recorded in other governmental funds.
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7. REÍRICTED DEPOSIT

Restricted cash ¡n the bus¡ness-type act¡v¡t¡es consists of:

Tenant secur¡ty depos¡ts
Reserve for replacement

s13s,364
9.518

S1t14lD2

Under the regulatory agreement, Project ¡s required to set as¡de amounts for the replacement of
property and other Project expend¡tures approved by HUD. HUD - Restr¡cted Deposits are held ¡n

separate accounts and generally are not available for operat¡ng purposes.

Tenant's Secur¡ty Depos¡t and its accumulated ¡nterest are held in a separate bank savings account in
the name of the Project, in compliance with USDA-RD and HUD requirements, Any amounts not
returned to the tenant due to lease violations are transferred to the Project's general operating account.
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8. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2015 was as follows:

Pr¡mary Goyerñment

Governmental act¡v¡ties:
Capital assets, not being depreciated;

Land

Construct¡on ¡n progress

Capital assets being depreciated:
lnfrastructure
Bu¡ldings, park and courts
Mach¡nery and equ¡pment
Automobiles

Total capital assets be¡ng deprec¡ated

Less accumulated depreciation for;
lnfrastructure
Buildings, parks and courts
Machinery and equ¡pment
Vehicles

Total

Total depreciable cap¡tal assets, net

Governmental activ¡ties capital assets net

Bus¡ness-type act¡v¡ties:
Cap¡tal assets net being depreciated:

Ealance
.lune 30. 2014 lncreases

5 2,413,388

5.739.s86

4.752,974

5,181,731
23,229,274

3,O25,260
2.429,228

33.86s.493

1737,2791
(11,3s9,942)

12,522,OO4].
(2.300.461)

(16.919.626)

t6.945.867

25.098.841

7,967,554
250.424

2,26a,67A

(7.887.O77].

330,901

381.601

s Éa80-442

5 727,647
2,657.370

2.773.O77

t,912,713
L,687,243

72,476
4

3.672.476

(269,200],
(s6s,620)

l.222,8751
153.193)

(1.110.828)

2.561.648

5.334.66s

Balance

Decreases June 30.2015

5 2,s3s,03s
s{2.3s4.2471 6.036.709

{2.354.2471. 8.577.7M

7,094,444
24,976,ssl

3,O97,736
2.429.232

37.537.969

(1,006,419)
(11,925,562)

12,744,8191
(2.353.654)

(18.030.4s4)

19.507.515

28.O79.2s9(2.354.247],

50.700

2,030,0s4
260.630

2,290,684

1L.947.7331

342.957

393.652

Land 50.700

Capital assets be¡ng depreciated:
Building and improvements
Equipment

Less accumulated depreciat¡on:
Build¡ng and ¡mprovements and
equipment

fotal depreciable cap¡tal assets, net

Bus¡ness act¡vities cap¡tal assets, net

62,500
10.206

72,746

(60.6s6)

12.050

12.050

5L346,715
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General administration
Public safety
Education and recreat¡on
Public works and san¡tat¡on
Health and welfare
Culture and tourist development
Econom¡c development
Fam¡ly and social development
Hous¡ng

Total depreciation expense

COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAUTY OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

NoTES To THE FINANCIAT. STATEMENTS (CofimNUEDI

JU E 30,2015

8. CAPTTAT A§SETS (CONT|Í{UED)

Depreciat¡on expense was charged to functions/programs ofthe Municipali§ as follows:

Governmental Bus¡ness-Type
Activ¡t¡es Act¡v¡t¡es

5 242,496
39,797

157,76L
485,274

18,150
8,7t5
2,O82

156,553

s60.556

sau0É28 s60-656

9. IONG.TERM DEBTS

Long-term liability activ¡ty for the year ended June 30, 2015 was as follows:

Pr¡mary Government Beginníng Ending Due within
Governmental act¡v¡t¡es: Balance Additions Reductions Balance one vear

Bonds and notes s7,854,000 s s(43s,OOO) 57,429,000 S 314,OOO

Other long-term debt:
Compensatedabsences t,234,7ts
AmountduetocRlM 156.455

Total 9,254,570

Bus¡ness-type act¡v¡t¡B:
Mortgage payable 320.982

59175152 s Slszg¿zAl S9n55^078 Src05224

06,799], 7,277,3t6 L,277,3t6
f6,951) 149.s04 7,L7L

(4s8,7s0) 8,795,820 L,s38,427

GL.7Z4\ 259.2s8 66.U7

Total
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF AGUAS BUENA' PUERTO RICO

NOTES TO THE FINANC¡AI, STATEMENTS (COMNNUED)

JUNE 30, 2015

9. roNG-TERM DEBTS (CONTTNUED)

Governmental act¡v¡t¡es:

Eonds and notes:

5920,000 Public lmprovement Bonds, Ser¡al 1995-95 payable in annual installments ranging
from 535,000 to 585,000 through .luly 1, 2020. tnterest ranging from 6.58% to 6.G3%
(6.58% at June 30, 2015) payable in semiannual installments.

5400,000 Public lmprovement Bonds, Ser¡al of 1991-92 payable in an annual ¡nstallment of
534,000 on Janua ry 7, 20L6, plus ¡nterest at 5.62%.

S2,285,000 General Obligation Bonds, Serial 2005-2006 payable in annual installments
ranging from 570,000 to 5175,000, through July 1, 2030. lnterest at 6.5% LTBOR rate plus

_yo 152% at lune 30, 2015) payable in semiannual installments.

- 5255,000 General Obl¡gat¡on Bonds, Serial 2007-2008 due in annual installments rang¡ng
from 55,000 to 520,000 through July 1,2031. tnterest at 1.25% over LTBOR rate (1.48% at
June 30,2015) payable in semiannual installments.

5955,000 General Municipal Obligat¡on, Serial 2012 payable in annual installments ranging
from $50,000 to S105,000 through July 1,2025. tnterest at L.25yo ouer LTBOR rate (6% at
June 30,2015) payable in semiannual installments.

54,145,000 Special Obligation Bond, Serial 2012-11 payable in annual ¡nstallments ran8ing
from $80,000 to 5345,000 through.July 1, 2035. tnterest at 1.5% over LTBOR pr¡me rate
(5% at June 30, 2015) due ¡n semiannually installments.

- $270,000 Special Obligat¡on Bond serial 2014-12 payable in annual ¡nstallments ranging from

S 4ro,ooo

34,000

1,840,000

215,000

830,000

3,875,000

520,000 to $30,000 through July L,2023. tnterest at 7.5/o over LTBOR prime rate (6% at
June 30,2015) due in semiannually installments. 225.OOO

s7t29-000
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MUñIICIPATITY OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

NoTEs To THE FINA cIAt STATEMENTS (CoNTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2015

9. IONG-TERM DEBTS (CONflNUED)

Governmental -type Act¡v¡t¡es:

The annual debt service requirements to maturity bonds and notes payables of June 30, 2015 are as
follows:

Year ended June 30

20!6
2017
20t8
2019
2020
202r-2025
2026-2030
2031-2035
2036

Year ended June 30

2016
?oL7
2018
20L9
2020
2021-202s
2026-203t
2032

Pr¡ncipal

s 314,000
310,000
330,000
355,000
380,000

1,890,000
L,890,000
L,6L5,000

345.000

s7.429.000

s 335,14s
320,985
306,255
290,608
274,186

7,L26,770
730,348
327,438

10.350

s3.723.085

S 6so,14s
630,985
636,255
645,608
654,186

3,0t6,770
2,620,348
L,942,434

355.350

s11.1s2.08s

lnterest Agqregate Obligation

Advances from CRIM and PR Treasury Department:

On January 26, 2000, Public Law, as amended, was enacted which authorized the CRIM to obta¡n a loan
up to $200 million, and for a term not exceeding 30 years, to allow for the financing of the debt that the
municipalities of Puerto R¡co have with the CRIM arising from final settlements of property tax
advances versus actual collections through fiscal year 2000-2001. The amount that the municipalities
will collect from the add¡t¡onal property taxes resulting from the increase in the subsidy from the
central government to the mun¡cipal¡t¡es was assigned through this law to repay such loan. The
increase in this subsidy was the result of the Public Law 238, enacted on August 15, 1999. As of June
30, 2015, the amount due to CRIM amount¡ng to 5149,504 ¡s presented as other long-term debt.

This amount represents the balance owed to CRIM as described in Note 3 and is payable ¡n annual
installments $7,276 including interest at 6.2Yo. fhe advances from CRIM and PR Treasury Department
mature as follows:

Principal

5 7,tLL
7,281
7 ,462
7,654
7,857

42,824
57,955
11.360

lnterest

S 9,096
8,652
8,198
7 ,73L
7 ,254

2A,619
L4,934

355

5149éE! SEAE3e

Aggresate Obl¡pat¡on

5 L6,207
15,933
15,660
15,385
15,111
7r,443
72,449
LL,7T5

s234313
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MUNICIPAI.ITY OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

NOTES TO THE FINANOAL STATEMENTS (CO$ÍINUED)

JUNE 30, 2015

9. LoNG-TERM DEBTS (CONTTNUED)

Bus¡ness-type activities:

Mortgage Payable consists of permanent residences loans provided by USDA-Rural Development. The

land and buildings of the Project secure the mortgage note. The mortgage note bears interest at 8%,

including subsidy ¡nterest of 7%. Principal and interest are payable in monthly installments of 55,555
through 2018. The maturates of the mortgage note at June 30, 2015 for the next five (5) years and

thereafter are as follows:

Year ended June 30 Principal lnterest Aggregate Obligation

20L6
20t7
2018
2079

5 66,847
72,396
78,405
41.610

571,944
6,395

985

5 78,7sL
78,797
79,391
4r,6to

s278.s83s259258 s19t25

10. INTERFUND BAI.ANCES AND ACÍIVITIES

BAI.ANCE DUE TO / FROM OTHER FUNDS:

Balance due to / from other funds at June 30, 2015, consist of the following:

Due from

General fund

General fund Other governmental fund Total

s346,000 s346,000
Other governmental fund 5246.000

Total 5246.000

11. RETIREMENT SYSTEM:

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

246,OOO

s346p00 s592.000

The Employee's Ret¡rement System of the Government of the Commonwealth Puerto Rico (ERS) is the
adm¡n¡strator of a cost-sharing multiple-employer pens¡on plan adm¡nistered by the Puerto Rico

Government Employee and Judiciary Retirement System Administration. The ERS was created by the

-É Act t147, approved on May 15, 1951, and became effective on January 1, 1952. ERS covers all regular
employees of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and its ¡nstrumentality and of municipalities and

components units not covered by the¡r own retirement systems.
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MUNICIPATITY OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

NorEs To THE FTNANCTAL STATEMENTS (Cornrueo)
JU E 30,2015

11. RETIREMENTSYSTEM (CONTINUED):

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Part¡cipation is mandatory except for members of the Legislature, Government Secretaries, Head of
ABencies and Publlc lnstrumentality, Assistants of the Governor, the Comptroller of the Puerto Rico,

Gubernatorial Board and Committee appo¡ntees and Experimental Service Station employees. ERS

provides retirement, death and disability benefits. D¡sabil¡ty retirement benefits are available to
members for occupational and non-occupat¡onal d¡sabil¡ties. Retirement benefits depend upon age at
retirement and number of years of credited serv¡ce. Benefits vest after ten years of plan participat¡on.

As of June 30, 2074, the ERS has an unfunded actuar¡al accrued liability (UAAL) of approximately

522,981 million, represent¡ng a 3.1% funding ratio. ln the opinion of management and based on
information prepared by consulting actuar¡es, ¡t ¡s estimated that start¡ng in fiscal year 2015, the ERS'S

assets w¡ll be less than ¡ts obl¡gations (including bonds payable but exclud¡ng its UAAL) resulting in a
deficit net position. ln addition, annual cash flow estimates for the foreseeable future are presently

estimated to continue to reduce the net posit¡on unless other measures are taken. Future employer
contributions have been pledged for the payment of debt service, consequently further depletion of
ERS'S assets could result ¡n the inabil¡ty to pay benefits.

The estimate of when the ERS'S net position will become a defic¡t and when ¡ts assets would be

exhausted is based on s¡gnificant assumptions, includ¡ng the rate of return on investments, the amount
and tlm¡ng of collections from the Commonwealth for the member, employer contribut¡ons and the
employer add¡tional contribut¡on (Act No. 32), which as discussed below, was estimated in §120.0
million annually, as well as the estimated partic¡pant benef¡ts and the ERS'5 administrat¡ve expenses to
be paid each year.

To ¡mprove the l¡quidity and solvency of the ERS, the Commonwealth enacted Act No. 32 of June 25,
2014, which provides for ¡ncremental annual contributions from the Commonwealth General Fund

beginning in fiscal year 2015 and up to the fiscal year 2033. This additional contr¡but¡on w¡ll be

determined annually based on actuarial studies to be performed by the ERS's actuaries. And

appropriation for such add¡tional contr¡bution of approx¡mately S120 million was ¡ncluded in the
Commonwealth's budget for the fiscal year 2015. However, as a result of budgetary constraints at the
present time management believes that approx¡mately S90 million of this amount w¡ll not be collected
as expected during fiscal year 2015. Further, this additional contr¡bution was reduced to 528.2 million
for the Commonwealth's proposed budget for the fiscal year 2015.

lf the Commonwealth's financial condition does not improve as a result of fiscal and budgetary
measures ¡t is tak¡ng, its ab¡lity to repay its obl¡gations, including its regular employer contr¡butions to
the ERS and ¡ts add¡tional contr¡bution as provided by Act No. 32, for the upcom¡ng years, may continue
to be adversely affected, and could also affect the payment of benefits and the repayment of the ERS's

bond payable.
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JU E 30,2015

11. RETIREMENT SYSTEM (CONTINUEDI:

To address these ¡ssues, the ERS and the Commonwealth, with the assistance of the ERS external
consulting actuaries, concluded that, ¡n add¡tion to other measures, annual increases in the employers'
contribution rate would be required to fully fund pensions, w¡thout hav¡ng to liquidate the ERS

¡nvestment portfolio. Accordingl¡ on luly 6, 2011, the Commonwealth enacted Act No. 116, increasing

the employers' contr¡butions rate from 9.275% to IO.275% of employee compensat¡on for fiscal year

2O77-20t2, an additional 1% annually for each of the next four years, and 1.25% annually for each of
the five years thereafter, reaching an aggregate contribution rate of 20.525% effect¡ve July I, ZO2O.

Furthermore, on Apr¡l 4, 2014 the Governor of Puerto Rico signed into law Act No. 3 of 2014, wh¡ch

represents a comprehensive reform of the ERS. Act No.3 became effective on July 1 2014 and

amended the provisions of the d¡fferent benefit structures under the ERS, including, but not l¡m¡ted to,
the following:

3.

4.

2.

7.

9.

5.

For act¡ve participants of the contributory defined benefit programs under Act No. 447 of 1951

and Act No. 1 of 1990, all retirement benefits accrued through June 30, 2014 were frozen, and

thereafter, all future benefits will accrue under the defined contr¡bution formula used for
System 2000 participants, and will be paid at ret¡rement through a lifetime annuity.

lncreased the m¡nlmum pension for current retirees from 5400 to 5500 per month.

The retirement age for Act No.447 part¡cipants w¡ll be gradually increased from age 58 to age

61.

The ret¡rement age for active System 2000 participants w¡ll be gradually increased from age 60
to age 65.

Trans¡tion¡ng active part¡c¡pants under Act No. 1 and Act No. 447 to a defined contr¡but¡on plan

similar to System 2000.

Eliminated the "merit annuity" available to part¡cipants who joined the ERS prior to April 1,

1990.

The retirement age for new employees was increased to age 67, except for new state and
mun¡c¡pal police officers, firefighters, and custody officers, which will be age 58.

The employee contribut¡on rate was ¡ncrease d from 8.275% to IO%.

For System 2000 part¡cipants, the ret¡rement benefits w¡ll no longer be paid as a lump sum
distribution, instead, they will be paid through a lifetime annuity.

8.
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11. RETIREMENT SYSTEM (CONTINUED):

10. Eliminated or reduced various retirement benefits previously granted by special laws, including
Christmas and summer bonuses. The Christmas bonus payable to current retirees was
reduced from 5500 to 5200 and was eliminated for future ret¡rees. The summer bonus was
eliminated. Resulting employer contribut¡on savings will be contributed to the ER5.

11. Disability benef¡ts were eliminated and substituted for a mandatory d¡sability insurance policy.

12. Surv¡vor benef¡ts were modified.

The Municipal¡ty contr¡but¡ons to the above ment¡oned plans during the current year and the two
previous were years as follows:

Year

201s
2014
2013

Amount

s21¿100
5126-000
51&r,053

Th¡s amounts represented the required contribution for the corresponding year.

Effective for fiscal year ended June 30, 2075, the GASB 68 requires that the Munic¡palit¡es
governmental-wide financial statements present the proport¡onal net pens¡on liability of the ERS. ln
addition, the GASB 68 requ¡red among other the following disclosures:

A. Employer/s proportionate share amount of collective net pension liability.

B. Employe/s proport¡onate percentage of collectlve net pension liabil¡ty (¡ncluding the bas¡s on
which it was determined) and change on its proportion since prior measurement debts.

C. Significant assumption used to measure total pension l¡ab¡l¡ty, ¡ncluding inflation, salary
changes, discounts rate and mortality.

D. Measurement date of collect¡ve net pension liability and date of actuarial valuat¡on on wh¡ch
the total liability ¡s base.

E. lnformat¡on about plan fiduciary net posit¡on

Other ¡nformation about the net pens¡on liabilit¡es should be disclosed as required supplemental
information. However, the ERS has not issued ¡ts financ¡al statements s¡nce June 30, 2013.
Accordingly, the required informat¡on is not available account¡ng the informat¡on is not disclosure in
the Municipality's financial statements.
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAUTY OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

Norfs To THE Fr]{a cnr STATEMETIIS lco]ún uED]

JU E 30,2015

RETIREMENT SYSTEM {CONNNUED):

The P.R. Retirement Plan Adm¡n¡strat¡on provides additional informat¡on ofthe ERS. They issue a public

available financial report thet includes financial statements and required supplementary information
for ERS, as a component unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. The last financial statement was

issued for fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. That report may be obtained by wr¡t¡ng to the
Administration at PO Box 42003, Minillas Stat¡on, San Juan, P.R. 00940.

CONNNGENCIES

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor
agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liab¡l¡ty of the
applicable funds. The amount, if any, of the expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor
cannot be determined at th¡s time, although the Mun¡cipal¡ty expects such amounts, if any. to be

immater¡al.

The Municipality is defendant and/or codefendant in several l¡t¡gat¡ons aris¡ng out of the normal
Municipal¡ty's operations. Most of the cases are covered by insurance. Management, after
consultat¡on with legal counsel is of the op¡n¡on that the ultimate liability, ¡n excess of ¡nsurance

coverage, if any, resulting from such pending lit¡gat¡ons will not have a material adverse effect on the
Municipali§/s fi nancial position.
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAUTY OF A6UAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

SCHEDUI.E OF BUDGETARY CoMPARISoN

FOR THE YEAR Ef{DED JU E30,2015

GEt{ERAt FUf{D

Revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes
Municipal tax
Construct¡on excise taxes

lnterest
Rent
Grants and entitlements
Other

Total revenues

Expendítures:
General adm¡nistrat¡on
Public safe§
Educat¡on and recreational
Public works and sanitation
Cultural and Tourist Development
Economic Development
Fam¡ly and Social Development
Hous¡ng and Urban Development

Total expend¡tures

Excess of expenditures over rcvenues

ORIGIf{AL
BUDGEI

S1,513,s30
710,@0
367,506
150,000
120,000

6,488,286
298,000

9.747.322

3,997,478
596,759
743,827

2,979,820
318,s14
248,945
730,596
157.383

9.773.322

AMMET{DED
BUDGET

s1,635,s30
710,000
367,505
150,000
120,000

6,497,2a6
298,000

9.773.322

3,966,481
658,70L
737,093

2,969,700
31s,987
248,945
730,5L2
1s1.903

9.773.322

VARIANCE
WITH FINAT EUOGEf

FAVORABTE

IUNFAVOMBTEIACTUAT

S1,636,s30
694,757
to4,302
84,983

L42,927
5,589,363

367 .42s

9.620.287

3,487,283
610,049
592,585

2,946,636
258,O23
227,936
689,452
114,819

9.026.783

l_593,504

s (1s,243)
(263,204l'
(5s,017)

22,927
98,077
69,42s

f153.035)

479,L98
48,6s2
38,508
23,0U
57pA
21,009
41,060
37,OU

746,539

L_5$te1
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPATITY OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

NoTEs To SCHEDUtE OF BUDGETARY CoMPARISoN

JurrlE 30, 2015

1. BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

The Mun¡cipality follows these procedures ¡n establishing the budgetary data reflected ¡n the
financial statements:

Formal budgetary ¡ntegrat¡on is employed as a management control device during the year for
the General Fund. Formal budgetary integration is not employed for special revenue funds
because effective budgetary control is alternatively ach¡eved through legal and contractual grant
requirements provisions.

On or before May 15, the Mayor submits to the Mun¡c¡pal Legislative Body a proposed operating
budget for the fiscal year commenc¡ng the following July 1. The operating budget includes
proposed expenditures and the means for f¡nanc¡ng them.

Prior to.June 13, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance.

The Municipal Leg¡slat¡ve Body approves, by ordinance budget appropriations by funct¡onal
basis. The Mayor is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between departments with¡n any
fund; however, any rev¡s¡ons that alter the total appropr¡at¡ons of any fund must be approved
by the Municipal Legislative Body.

Unused appropriations for the annual budgeted funds lapse at the end of the year.

The budget is prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting. The actual results of operations,
presented in the Statement of Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual General Fund, is

in conformity with the budgetary accounting of the Municipal¡ty for a better compar¡son with
the budget information.

The presentation of the budgetary data excludes other appropriations such as capital projects,
debt service and special revenue funds because projects are funded on a multi-year nature,
generally requiring several years to complete or effective budgetary control is alternatively
ach¡eved through general obligation bond ¡ndentures and legal and contractual grant agreement
provisions.

1)

2l

3)

4l

s)
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUITilC|PAUTY OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

NOIE5 TO SCI.IEDUIf, OF BUDGEÍARY COMPARISO

,uf{E 30, 2015

2. RECONCIUANON OF GAAP TO BUDGETARY BASIS

Adjustments necessary to reconcile the revenues and expend¡tures of the General Fund at the end

of the year, from the generally accepted account¡ng pr¡nciples to budgetary basis, are as follows:

Excess of revenue over expenditures, budgetary bas¡s S sg¡,so¿

Adjustments to accounts payable accrued expenses and accounts
receivable to adjust budgetary bas¡s a modified accrual basis (272,7t71

Expenses from state sales tax does not budget ¡n the general fund 17,L67,0431
lncome from state sale tax does not budget in the general fund t,LL3.428

5--267-Di
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUN|CTPAUW OF AGUAS BUEÍ{AS, PUERTO R|CO

S€HEDULE OF EXPE D]TURES OF FEDER/TI. AwARfTs

YEAR EIDGDJU E 30, 2015

CFDA

NUMBER EXPENDITURES

US Department of Hous¡m and Urban
DeveloDment
Passed-through program from:

Municipal Service Administration:
Community Development Block Grant l4.Z2B S 7S2,4Og

Direct Programs:
Sect¡on 8- Housing Choice Vouchers 14.877 961,435
Supportive Housing program f4.235 53,059

US Deoartment of Aar¡cultúre
Passed-through program from :

PR Department of Education:
Child and Adult Food program 10.558 63,020

US Department of Health and Human services
Passes-through program from :

PR Department of Family:
Child Care and Development Block Grant 93.575 327,083

Total Expenditures FederalAwards S2JS7-OO6
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MUTIOPAI¡TY ()F AGUAS BT'EIIAS, ruERIO MCO
ofEs To SorEurr¡ Of EoErDrirnEs OF FEDE¡ rAw n6

,ur{E !tO,2015

I
L t. BAsrs oF PREsErfiATro :

I ne accompar¡y¡ng Schedule of Expenditures of FederelAwards includes the federalgrant act¡vity of
t Municipali§ of Aguas Buenas, Puerto R¡co and is prepared on the mod¡fted accrual basis of

acoounting. Accordingly, arnounts presented in the accompanying schedule atree to amounts

I presented ¡n the basic financ¡al statements.
L
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]I{DEPENDET{T AUDITOR,S REPORT ON INTERNAT CONTROT OVER FINAITCIAT REPORTIÍ{G AND ON

COMPTIANCE AI{D OTHER MATITRS BASEO ON Af{ AUDIT OF FINANCIAT SÍATEMENTS PERFORMED IN

ACCORDAI{CE wlTH GOVERNMENÍ AUDMNG STANDARDS

To Honorable Mayor and
Municipality teg¡slat¡ve Body

Municipality of Aguas Buenas

Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico

We have audited, in accordance with the audit¡ng standards generally accepted in the United States of
Amer¡ca and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Stondords

issued by the Comptroller General of the Un¡ted States, the financial statements of the governmental

act¡v¡ties, the business-type act¡v¡t¡es, each major fund, and the aggregate. remain¡ng fund information

of Municipality of Aguas Euenas, Puerto Rico, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the
related notes to the financ¡al statements, which collectively comprise Municipality of ASuas Buenas,
puerto Rico-s basic financial statements, and have issued our. report thereon dated March 9,2015.
Others auditors aud¡ted the f¡nancial statements of Espir¡tu Santo Project, as descr¡bed ¡n our report on

Mun¡cipal¡ty of Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico's financial statements. Th¡s report does not include the

results of the other auditors' test¡ng of ¡nternal control over financ¡al reporting of compliance and other

matters that are reported on separately by those auditors.

lnternal Control oyer Financ¡al Reportint

ln planning and performing our audit of the financial statementt we cons¡dered MunicipalitY of Aguas

Buenas, Puerto Rico's ¡nternal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determ¡ne the aud¡t

procedures that are appropr¡ate ¡n the c¡rcumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the

financ¡al statements, but not for the purpose of express¡ng an op¡nion on the effectiveness of
Municipalfi of Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico's ¡nternal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion

on the effectiveness of Municipality of Atuas Buenas; Puerto R¡co's internal control.

A deficiency ¡n ¡nternot contro, exists when the design or operat¡on of a control does not allow

management or employees, ¡n the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or

detect and correct, m¡sstatements on a timely basis. A materio I weokness ¡s a defic¡ency, or a

combinat¡on of deficienciet ¡n ¡nternal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a mater¡al

m¡sstatement of the ent¡Vs financial statements w¡ll not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a

timely basis. A significont deficiency is a defic¡ency, or a combination of deficiencies, ¡n internal control

that is less severe than a mater¡al weakness, yet ¡mportant enough to merit attention by those charged

with governance.

Governmental
Audit Ouality Ce.rter

MEMBER:

Añerican lrstitute of Certif¡ed Publ¡c Accountants

P¡¡erto Ric! society of Certified Public Accountants
CPA



Our consideration of internal control was for the l¡mited purpose described in the first paragraph of th¡s
sect¡on and was not designed to ¡dentify all deficiencies in internal control that m¡ght be material
weaknesses or, signif¡cant def¡c¡encies. G¡ven these limitat¡ons, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may ex¡st that have not been identified.

Compl¡ance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Municipali§ of Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico's
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of ¡ts compliance with
certa¡n provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of f¡nanc¡al statement amounts. However,
prov¡ding an opinion on compliance with those provis¡ons was not an objective of our audit, and

accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Stondords

and which is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned cost as item 2015-1.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report ¡s solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and

compliance and the results of that test¡ng, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in

accordance w¡th Government Auditing Stdndords ¡n consider¡ng the entity's internal control and

compliance. Accordingly, this communicat¡on is not sultable for any other purpose.

Cados R. Díaz, CPA, PSC
License No.275

Expire December 1, 2018
March 15, 2016

Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico

The stamp No. E199127 ofthe Puerto Rico

Society of Certified Publ¡c Accountants was

affixed to the original of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR,S REPORT ON COMPUANCE FOR EACH MA'OR PROGRAM

AÍID ON IT{TERNAT CONTROL OVER COMPUA'{CE REQUIRED BY OM8 SRCUIAR 4.133

To Honorable Mayor and
Mun¡cipal¡ty teg¡slat¡ve Body

Municipali§ of Aguas Buenas

Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rlco

Report on Compl¡ance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Municipality of Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico's compliance with the types of compliance

requirements described in the OMB Circuldr A-733 Compliance Supprement that could have a d¡rect and

material effect on each of Mun¡cipality of Aguas Buenas, Puerto R¡co's major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2015. MuniciPal¡ty of ASuas Euenas, Puerto Rico's major federal programs is

identified in the summary of aud¡to/s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and

questioned costs. Munic¡pal¡ty of Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico's basic financial statements include the

operations of the Espiritu Sranto Project, which received 5594,191 in federal awards wh¡ch is not

included in the schedule during the year ended June 30, 2015. Our aud¡t, descr¡bed below, did not

include the operat¡ons of Espiritu Santo Project because Munic¡pal¡ty of Aguas Buenas, Puerto R¡co

engaged other aud¡tors to perform an audit in accordance w¡th OMB Circular A-133.

M o nog e m e n( s Res?o n si bi t W

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulat¡ons, contracts, and

grants applicable to íts federal programs.

Audttor's Respnsi Ülity

our responsibili§ ¡s to express an opinion on compliance for each of Munk¡pal¡ty of ASuas Buenas,
puerto R¡co's major federal programs based on our aud¡t of the types of compliance requ¡rements

referred to above. We conducted our aud¡t of compliance in accordance w¡th aud¡ting standards

generally accepted in the United States of Amer¡ca; the standards applicable to financ¡al aud¡ts

contained in Government Audit¡ng Stondords, issued by the Comptroller General of the Un¡ted States;

and OMB Circular A-133, Aud¡ts of Stotes, Locol Governments, ond Non-Prof¡t Orgon¡zotions. fhos€

standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and pelorm the audit to obta¡n reasonable

assurance about whether noncompliance w¡th the types of compliance requirements referred to above

that could have a direct and mater¡al effect on a major federal program occurred. An aud¡t includes

examining, on a test basit evidence about Mun¡cipal¡ty of ASuas Buenas, Puerto R¡co's compliance

w¡th those requirements and performing such other procedures as we cons¡dered necessary in the

circumstances.

MEMBER:

Arnerican lnstitute of Ce.tmed Publ¡c Accountants
Puerto Rico Soc¡ety ol Certified Publ¡c Accountants

l^ P^ Governmentálvr'\ Audit Ouálity Ceñter



We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our audit does not provlde a legal determination of Municipali§ of Aguas
Buenas, Puerto Rico's compliance.

Opinion on Each Mojo¡ Federul Progrum

ln our opin¡on, Municipality of Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico complied, in all material respects, w¡th the
types of compliance requ¡rements referred to above that could have a d¡rect and material effect on each
of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2015.

Report on lnternal Control over Compliance

Management of Municipality of Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico ¡s respons¡ble for establishing and
ma¡nta¡ning effective internal control over compl¡ance with the types of compl¡ance requirements
referred to above. ln planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Mun¡c¡pal¡ty of
Aguas Buenas, Puerto Rico's internal control over compliance with the §pes of requirements that could
have a direct and mater¡al effect on each major federal program to determine the aud¡ting procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for
each major federal program and to test and report on ¡nternal control over compliance in accordance
with OMB C¡rcular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Municipal¡ty of Aguas Buenas, Puerto R¡co's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency ¡n internol control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
ass¡gned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A moterlo I weokness in internol control over
complionce is a defic¡ency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compl¡ance, such that
there ¡s a reasonable poss¡b¡l¡ty that material noncompl¡ance w¡th a type of compliance requ¡rement of
a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a t¡mely basis. A significont
defic¡ency in internol control over compl¡once is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compl¡ance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe
than a mater¡al weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged w¡th governance.

Our considerat¡on of internal control over compliance was for the l¡mited purpose described in the f¡rst
paragraph of this sect¡on and was not designed to ¡dentifo all def¡c¡encies in internal control over
compliance that m¡ght be material weaknesses or significant defic¡encies. We d¡d not ¡dent¡fy any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
mater¡al weaknesses may ex¡st that have not been identified.

57



IL

¡

I The purpose of th¡s report on intemal control wer compliance ¡s solev to describe the scope of ourb test¡ng of ¡ntemal control orer compl¡ance and the resuJts of that testing based on the reguirements of
OMB C¡rcular A-133. Accordindy, this report is not suitable for arry oth€r purpose.
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Cados R Díaz, CPA PSC

L¡cense No. 275
Exp¡re December 1, 2018

L Mardr 1s,2016
AEUas Buenas, Puerto Rico

Ib The stamp No. E199ü28 ofthe Puerto Rio
Stociety of Cert¡fied Publlc Accountants was

L affixedtotheor¡dnalofthisreport.
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAUTY OF AGUAS BUENAS, PUERTO RICO

SGHEDUtE OF FlNDlr{GSAND QuEsrloNED Costs

FORTHE YCAR EÍ{DED JUNE 30,2015

SECTION I . SUMMARY OF AUDITORS RESUTTS

Financial Statéments

Type of auditor's report issued

lnternal control over financial reportinS:

o Material weakness identified? 
-yes 

X no

. S¡gn¡ficant deficiency identified that is not cons¡dered

to be material weaknesses? 
-Yes 

X no

Noncompl¡ance material to f¡nanc¡al statement noted? X yes 
-no

Federal Awards

lnternal control over maior programs:

o Material weakness ¡dentif¡ed? 
-yes 

X no
. Signif¡cant deficiency identified that are not considered

to be material weakness? 

-Yes 

X no

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs Unmodified

Any audit findings d¡sclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with sect¡on 510(a) of C¡rcular A-133 X yes 

-noldentification of major programs:

. Governmentalactivities
o Governmental funds

CFA Numberfs)

74.224

Qualified opinion
Unmodified opinion

Name of Federal Program

Community Development
Block Grant

Dollar threshold used to d¡st¡nguish between type A
and type B programs: 5300,000

Audit qual¡f¡ed as low-risk audited?
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPAUW OF AGUAS BUENAS
ScHEour.E OF Fr D[{Gs AND QuEinor{ED Cosrs (Corfl uEDl

FoRTHE YEAR Er{DEDJur{E 30, 2015

SECNON II - FINANCIAT STATEMENTS FINDTNGS

Find¡ng No. 20t5{t1

Accounting system

Condition

The Municipalit/s financial statements do not include such adjustments and disclosures require by
GASB - 58.

Llltena

GASB 58 requires that the pens¡on expenses, as well as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pension be recognized for employe/s proport¡onate share of collective
pension expense and collective deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pens¡ons. The employe/s proport¡onate share should be determined using the employer,s
proportion of the collective net pension liability.

Effect

The Municipaliq/s financial statements are not presented in accordance with generally accepted in the
Un¡ted States of Amer¡ca.

Recommendation

The Municipality should adjust its financ¡al statements to ¡ncluded such adjustments required by
accounting principle generally accepted ¡n the United States of America.
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